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1 Dansbury Sguare 1545 Route 202
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Fax: 570-421-3615 Fax: 570-992-3802
KEVIN D. SUMMA, CPA DALE E. KIRK, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Satisbury Township
Lehigh County, Pennsylvania

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type acfivities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Salisbury Township as of and for the year ended December 31,
2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Safisbury Township, as of December 31, 2019, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

MEMBER OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
PENNSYLVANIA INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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Emphasis of a Matter

As discussed in Note 9 fo the financial statements, Salisbury Township has been negatively impacted by the
outbreak of a novel coronavirus (COVID-19), which was declared a global pandemic by the World Health
Organization in March 2020. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the Management Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting or placing the basic financial
statements- in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial
statements is not affected by this missing information.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison
information and pension information on pages 55 to 61 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it 1o be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
Salisbury Township’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements on
pages 63 and 64 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

m. SMMM-" CB LLP

December i, 2020
East Stroudsburg, Pennsylvania

KIRK, SUMMA & CO. LLP




SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECENMBER 31, 2019

Governmental Business-iype
Activities Activities Totals
ASSETS

Current Assels:

Cash $ 1,774,952 $ 2,154,976 $ 3,820,928

Investments 1,832,723 239,546 2,072,269

Taxes receivable 38,673 - 38,573

Accounts recelvable, net 1,128,588 1,074,312 2,202,800

Prepaid expenses 5,681 - 5,681
Total Current Assets 4,780,517 3,468,834 8,249 351
Capiltal Assets:

Land and fand improvements 6,529,601 - 6,529,601

Construction in progress - - -

Buildings and building improvements : 8,003,109 “ 9,003,109

Infrastructure 687,404 - 687,404

Traffic signals 244,011 - 244011

Vehicles and transportation equipment 2,498,855 659,623 3,158,478

Office equipment 153,147 - 153,147

Operating equipment 7 1,308,135 - 1,308,135

Water collection system - 6,441,664 6,441,664

Sewer collection system - 10,541,638 10,541,638

20,424,262 17,642,925 38,067,187

Less: accumutated depreciation {11,008,226) (10,142,974) (21,151,200)
Total Capital Assets, net of Accumuiated Depreciation 9,416,036 7,499,951 16,915,987
TOTAL ASSETS 14,196,553 10,968,785 25,165,338

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESCURCES

Contributions subsequent to the measurement dale 484,821 - 484,821
Differences between expected and actual experience 1,053,429 - 1,053,429
Changes in assumptions 158,522 - 158,522
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan invesiments 161,037 - 161,037
TOTA DEFERRED OUTFL.OWS OF RESOURCES 1,857,808 - 1,857,809
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

OF RESOURCES $ 18,054,382 $ 10,968,785 $ 27,023,147

The notes to financial stalements are an integral part of these financial statements.



Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Payroll taxes payable

Other liabliities

SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - continued

LIABILITIES

Current portion of long-ferm debt

Total Current Liabiiities

Long-Term Liabilities:

Compensated absences

Net pension lability

Bonds payable, net of current portion of long-term debt
and unamortized premiums and discounts

Refundable deposits

Total Long-Term Llabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

DECEMBER 31, 2018

Differences between expected and actual experience
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investmenis

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Restricted
Unresiricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LJABILITIES, DEFERRED INFL.OWS

NET POSITION
invested in capital assets, net of related debt

OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

Governmentat Business-type
Activities Activities Totals

$ 303,520 $ 251,203 $ 554,723
404,822 295,298 700,120
55,124 - 55,124
13,536 - 13,536
118,000 221,000 340,000
896,002 767,501 1,663,503
805,588 - 805,589
5,335,046 - 5,335,046
1,642,880 3,408,618 5,051,496
- 100 100
7,783,515 3,408,716 11,192,231
8,679,517 4,176,217 12,855,734
507,171 - 507,171
22,994 - 22,994
530,165 - 830,165
7,654,156 3,870,335 11,524,491
1,374,055 - 1,374,055
(2,183,531} 2,922,233 738,702
6,844,680 6,792,568 13,637,248
$ 16,054,362 $ 10,968,785 $ 27,023,147

The notles to financlal statements are an integrai part of these financlal statements,
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
{LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET-MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS -

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Total fund balance - {otal governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different hecause:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources
and therefore are not reporied in the government funds balance sheef.

Accumulated depreciation from capital assets used in governimental activities
are not current financial resources and therefore is not reporied in
the governmental funds balance sheet.

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are applicable to future
periods and, therefore, are not reported in governmental-type fund:

Contributions subsequent fo the measurement date
Deferred outflow of differences betwsen expecled and actual experience
Deferred outflow of changes in assumptions
Deferred outflow of net difference between projected and aciual earnings
on pension plan investments
Accrued compensated absences are not accrued in governmental-type funds.

Net pension obligations are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the government-type fund statements.

Long-term debt is not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
is not reported on the governmental-type fund's balance sheet:

Bonds payable

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are applicable to future
periods and, therefore, are not reported in governmental-type fund:

Deferred inflow of differences between expected and actual experience
Deferred inflow of net difference belween projecied and actual earnings
on pension pian investments

Total adjustments

Net position of governmental activities

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements,
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$ 4,003,515

20,424,262

(11,008,2286)

484,821
1,053,429
158,522

161,037

{805,589)

{5,335,046)

(1,761,880)

(507,171)

(22,994)
2,841,165

$ 6,844,680




SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Other Total
General Highway Aid Governmental Govermnmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ 6,045,890 $ - $ 348,616 $ 6,394,506
Licenses and permits 248,890 - - 248,890
Fines and forfeits 61,080 - - 61,080
Interest, rents and royalties 127,631 6,607 9,287 143,535
Intergovernmental 660,859 489,442 312,718 1,463,019
Charges for services 574,948 - - 574,948
Miscellaneous 97,481 - - 97,481
Total Revenues 7,816,779 496,049 870,631 8,983,459
Other Financing Sources
Proceeds of general fixed asset disposition - ‘ - 84,897 84,897
Transfers in ' 348,351 - 1,102,074 1,450,425
Refunds of prior year expenditures 65,654 - 23,878 89,532
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources 8,230,784 498,049 1,881,480 10,608,313
Expenditures
General government 1,025,357 - 38,244 1,063,601
Public safety 2,832,555 - 465,557 3,288,112
Public works - highways and sfreets 1,616,438 430,848 196,78C 2,244,086
Culture and recreation 80,829 . - 330,084 410,913
Community development 63,635 - - 63,635
Debt service - principal - - 137,000 137,000
Debt service - interest - - 46,032 46,032
. Payroll taxes 181,028 - - 181,028
Pension . 874,293 - - 874,293
insurance and cther benefits 1,330,687 - - 1,339,587
Miscellaneous 56 - 1,083 1,149
Refund of prior year revenues 1,618 - - 1,618
Transfers out 804,333 - 517,556 1,321,889
Total Expenditures 8,819,729 430,848 1,732,346 10,982,923
Excess (Deficit) of revenues and other
financing sources over (under) expenditures (588,945) 65,201 149,134 {374,610)
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 3,218,405 655,463 504,257 4,378,125
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 2,629,480 3 720,664 $ 653,391 $ 4003515

The notes to financial statements are an integrat part of these financial statements.
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Net change in fund balances - {otal governmental funds $ (374,610)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Government funds report capital outlay as expenditures, However, in the
government-wide statement of activites and changes in net assels, the cost
of those assets is allocaled over thelr estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense, This is the amount of capital assets recorded in the current pericd. 365,592

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the government-wide
statement of activities and changes in net assets, but they do not require the
use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not
reported as expenditure in governmental funds. (376,802)

Governmental-type funds do not accrue the changes in compansated absences
on their statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund equity,

However, this amount is accrued on the statement of activiiies. 245,069

Repayment of bonds payable is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term Habilities in the statlement of net position. 138,029

Adjustment for pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date

and change in net pension liability. (717 ,872)
Total adjustments (345,984)
Change in net position of governmental activities $ (720,594)

The nofes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP :
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION ;
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Refuse and Total
Water Sewer Recycling Proprietary
Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivaients $ 344,026 $ 1,401,252 $ 409,698 5 2,154,976

investments 41,176 198,370 - 238,546

Accounts receivable, net 366,423 534,032 172,057 1,074,312
Total Current Assels 751,625 2,134,554 582 655 3,468,834
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 4,548,348 2,951,603 - 7,499,951
Total Assets $ 5,299,973 $ 5,086,157 $ 582,655 $ 10,068,785

LIABIILITIES AND NET POSITICN
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 5,633 $ 129,922 $ 115,648 $ 251,203

Accrued expenses 119,836 175,132 330 295,298

Current portion of long-term debt 166,600 54,400 - 221,000
Total Current Liabilities 292 069 350,454 115,978 767,501
Long-Term Liabilities .

Bonds payabie, net of current portion of fong-term debt

and unamortized premiums and discounis 2,642,974 865,645 - 3,408,616

Refundable deposits 100 - - 100
Total Long-Term Liabilities 2,543,071 865,645 - 3,408,716
Total Liabilities 2,835,140 1,225,098 115,678 4,176,217

NET POSITION

Investment in capital assets, nef of related debt 1,838,777 2,031,658 - 3,870,335
Unrestricted 626,056 1,829,500 466,677 2,622 233
Total Net Position 2,464,833 3,861,058 468,677 6,792 568

Total Lizbilities and Net Position ' 5 5,299,973 $ 5,086,157 $ 582,655 $ 10,868,785

The notés to financial stalements are an Infegral part of these financial statements
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP

LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Refuse and Total
Water Sewer Recycling Proprietary
Fund Fund Fund Funds
Operating Revenues
Charges for services $ 1,852,799 $ 2,034,206 $ 1,416,950 $ 5,304,045
Tapping fees 2,989 6,355 - 12,344
Miscellaneous 670 4,915 3,510 9,005
Total Operating Revenues 1,856,458 2,048,566 1,420,450 5,325,484
Operating Expenses
Administrative 8,214 8,218 8,218 24,650
Audit fees 1,500 1,500 - 3,000
Computer expense 16,671 16,882 13,233 46,786
Contracled services ' 595 20,797 1,111,576 1,132,868
Contractual payments 10,000 160,825 - 170,825
Bepreclation expense 114,309 136,964 - 251,273
Bisposal costs - 613,628 - 613,628
Engineering 1,028 32,980 - 33,080
Hydrant rental 15,353 - - 15,353
Insurance 125,238 125,238 22,874 273,350
Legal services - 21,052 - 21,052
Miscellaneous . 4,295 1,337 605 6,237
Payroll taxes 25,159 25,158 4,177 54,494
Pension 95,087 95,087 19,393 209,567
Postage 3,729 4,306 4,221 12,256
Printing 2,590 2,101 2,115 6,806
Reoycling costs - - 124,480 124,480
Repairs and maintenance ' 2,215 5,235 - 7,450
Small tools 4,333 2,695 - 7,028
Supplies 11,257 14,050 - 25,307
Telephone 1,703 447 - 2,150
Testing and calibration services 5,850 - - 5,850
Transmission expense . - 29,724 - 29,724
Wages 326,429 326,426 54,104 706,859
Water purchases 1,044 5386 - - 1,044 636
Utilitles 6,729 11,239 - 17,868
Vehicle expenses 8,709 §,709 - 17,418
Total Operating Expenses 1,835,530 1,664,578 1,364,996 4,865,104
Net Income From Operations 20,928 383,988 55,464 480,380
Non-Operating Revenues {Expenses)
Interest income 10,602 27,560 8,818 46,980
interest expanse (67.465) {23,254) - (60,719}
Transfers in {out) {112,674) 107,141 (122,490) {128,023)
Total Non-Operating Revenues {Expenses) {168,637) 111,447 {113,672) {171,762)
Change in Net Position {148,809) 495 435 {58,208} 268,618
Contributed Capital 506,400 2,201,036 - 3,107,436
Net Position Beginning of Year 1,707,042 1,164,587 524 885 3,386,514
Net Position End of Year $ 2,464,833 $ 3,861,058 $ 468,677 $ 6,792,568

The notes to financiai statements are an integral part of these flnanciat statements.
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP

LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Total
Proprietary
Funds

$ 2,007,583

$ 5,294,496

21,439

(4,184,863}

(761,453)

369,610

(334 ,524)
(188,000)

(622,524}

200,939
46,980
(90,719)

(128,023)

28,177

(123,728}

2,278,704

$ 2,154,976

460,380

251,273

{9,659)

22,484
(354,959)

(90,761)

Water
Fund
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash recelved from customers $ 1,842,368
Cash received from other sources 3,659
Cash payments for materials and setvices (1,375,912}
Cash payments for employment {351,588)
Net cash provided by operating activities 118,525
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisltion of capital assets -
Principal payment of tong-term debt - 2016 GOB {142,400}
Net cash {used in) capital and refated financing activities {142,400)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceads of investments -
Interest income 10,602
Interest expanse (67,465)
Transfers In {out) (112,674)
Net cash provided by (used In) Investing activities {169,537)
Net increase (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents © {193,412)
Cash and cash egulvalents at beginning of year 537,438
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 344,026
Reconciliation of net Income frem operations to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Net income from operations $ 20,928
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 114,309
{Increass) dacrease in current assets:
Accounts receivable {10,443}
increase (decrease) In current fabilities:
Accourits payable {2,133}
Accrued expenses ‘ {4,136}
Total Adjustments : 97,597
Nef cash provided by operating actlvities % 118,525

369,619

The notes to financial statements are an intagral part of these financial statements.
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENTS OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2019
Police Subdivison Total
Pension Escrow Fiduclary
Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash $ 578,355 $ 417,625 $ 995,980
investments 5,619,648 - 5,619,648
Total Current Assels 6,198,003 417,625 6,615,628
Total Assets $ 6,198,003 $ 417,625 $ 6,615,628

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilitles .
Refundable escrow deposits $ - $ 133,591 3 133,591
Refundable escrow interest - 7,827 7,827
Total Current Liabilities - 141,418 141,418
NET POSITION
Net position held in trust for pension henelfits 6,188,003 276,207 6,474,210
Totat Net Position 6,198,003 278,207 6,474,210
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 6,198,003 $ 417,625 $ 6,615,628

The notes tc financial statements are an integral par of these financlai statements,
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LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA

SALISBURY TOWNSHIP

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Revenues
Coentributions - stafe aid
Contributions - members
Contributions - employer
Interest and dividends
Nel increase In fair value of investments

Total Revenues
Expenses
Benefit Payments
Investment expenses
Administrative expenses
Transfers out - General Fund
Total Expenses
Change In Net Position
Net Position at Beginning of Year

Net 'Posiﬁon at End of Year

Police Subdivision Total
Pension Escrow Fiduclary

Fund Fund Funds
$ 184,338 3 - % 184,338
40,181 - 40,181
200,184 - 200,184
213,245 2,722 215,967
667,419 - 667,419
1,305,367 2,722 1,308,089
257,603 - 257,603
33,217 - 33,217
6,025 - 6,025
- 513 513
296,845 513 297,358
1,008,622 2,209 1,010,731
5,189,481 273,998 5,483,479
$ 6,198,003 $ 276,207 $ 6474210

The notes to financlal statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 1~ NATURE OF ACTIVITY

Salisbury Township (the Township), Lehigh County, Pennsylvania, founded in 1753, has an approximate population
of 13,505 based on a 2010 census report, living within an area of 11.1 square miles. The Township is in the
southeastern portion of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and is located in Lehigh County.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. General Statement

These financial statemenis are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP). Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
include all relevant Governmential Accounting Standards Board (GASB} pronouncements.

The Township has adopted GASB Statement No. 62, Godification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. GASB 62 incorporates info
the GASB's authoritative fiterature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in the
following proncuncements Issued on or before November 30, 1988, which does not conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements: Financlal Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations,
Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins of the American Institute of Certified

~ Public Accountants’ {(AICPA) Committee on Accounting Procedure. This statement is effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2011.

B. Financial Reporting Entity

The Township is a Pennsylvania First Class Township which operates under a Board of Commissioners form of
government. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the reporting
entity consist of the primary government and organizations for which the primary government if financially
accountable. In addition, the primary government may determine through the exercise of management's
professional judgment that the inclusion of an organization that does not meet the financial accountability criteria is
necessary in order to prevent the reporting entity's financial statements from being misleading. in such instances,
that organization should be included as a component unit if the nature and significance of their relationship with the
primary government or other component units, are such that exclusion from the financial reporting ertity would
render the financial reporting entity's financial statemenis {o be misleading or incomplete. In evaluating how fo
define the reporting entity, management has considered all potential component units. The decision to include a
potential component unit in the reporting entity was made based upon the above criteria. There are no agencies or
entities which should be presented with the Township.

C. Basis of Presentation
Government-Wide Financial Statements
The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the reporting government as
a whole. The statements include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements
distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed

through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other nonexchange revenues. Business-type activities are
financed in whole, or in par, by fees charged to external parties for goods and services.

18




SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

C. Basis of Presentation — continued .

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, financial transactions and accounts of the Township are organized on a basis of
funds. The operation of each fund is considered to be an independent fiscal and separate accounting entity with a
self-balancing set of accounts recording cash andfor other financial resources, together with alf related liabilities
and residual equities or balances, and changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on
specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions or limitations.
Funds are organized into fwo major categories: governmental and proprietary. An emphasis is placed on major
funds within the governmental and propristary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating
fund of the Township or meets the following criteria:

Total assets, liabiiities, revenues or expenditures of that individual government or proprietary fund are at
least 10% of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type, and total assets, liabilities,
revenues or expenditures of the individual governmental fund or proprietary fund are at least 5% of the
corresponding total for all governmental and proprietary funds combined.

The Township may also report as a major fund any fund it believes to be of particular importance to the financial
statement users, :

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described balow:
Governmental Funds:;

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the Township are financed.
The acquisition, use and balances of the Township’s expendable financial resources and the related
liabilities {except those accounted for in proprietary funds) are accounted for through governmental funds.
The measurement focus is based upon determination of changes in financial position rather upon net
income determination.

General Fund ~ is the primary operating fund of the Township and is always classified as a major
fund. It is used to account for and report al! financial resources not accounted for and reported in
ancther fund.

Speclal Revenue Funds — are used fo account for and report proceeds of specific revenue sources
that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or
capital projects, The lerm "proceeds of specific revenue sources” establishes that one or more
specific restricted or committed revenues should be the foundation for a special revenue fund. The
reporting entity includes the following special revenue funds which are reported as major funds:

Liquid Fuefs Fund — is used to account for the proceeds from the State Motor License Fund.
Under the Act of June 1, 1956, P.L. 1944, No. 145, this Fund must be kept separate from all
other funds and no other funds shall be commingled with this Fund. Expenditures are
legally restricted to expenditures for highway purposes in accordance with the Department
of Transportation regulations. County liguid fusis tax payments to the local government are
not accounted for in this Fund,

Fire Protection Fund — accounts for taxes collected for specific purposes and expended for
fire protection purposes.

Library Fund — accounts for taxes collected for specific purposes and expended for library
operation purposes. J
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 2 —~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES - continued

C. Basis of Presentation - continued

Fund Financial Statements — continued
Governmental Funds— continued:

Capital Projects Fund — is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
comimitted or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays inciuding. the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities and other capital assets, including those financed by general obligation bond
proceeds, Capital projects funds exclude those types of capital related outflows financed by
proprietary funds or for assets that will be held in trust for individuals, private organizations or other
governments. The reporting entity includes the following capital projects fund which is reported as a
major fund;

Capital Projects Fund — is used to account for resources used to construct or acquire capital
assets from resources derived from budgetary transfers, long-term debt proceeds and
investment earnings.

Debt Service Fund — is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed or assigned fo expanditure for principal and interest {debt service). This Fund includes
financial resources that are being accumulated for principal and interest maturing in future years and
also includes financial resources that are legally mandated to be accounted for and reported in a
debt service fund. The reporting entity includes the following debt service fund which is reported as
a major fund;

Debt Service Fund — is used for the payment of debt related to the Township’s General
Obiigation Bond, Series of 2016.

Proprigtary Funds:

Enterprise Funds — are used to account for business-like activities provided to the generai public.
These activities are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity
focuses on net income measurement similar to the private-sector. The reporting entity includes the
foliowing enterprise funds which are reported as major funds:

Water Fund — is used to account for the operation of the water system which is operated as
a public ufility. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for but not
limited to; administration, operations and maintenance, financing and related debt service,
bitfing and collection.

Sewer Fund —~ is used to account for the operation of the sewer system which is operated
as a public utility. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for but not
limited to; administration, operations and maintenance, financing and related debt service,
billing and collection.

Refuse and Recycling Fund — is used to account for the operation of trash collection for

Township residents. Ali activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for but
not limited to; administration, billing and collection.
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
C. Baslis of Presentation — continued

Fund Financial Statements ~ continued

Fiduciary Fund Types:

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the Township in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. The Township reporis the
following fiduclary fund types:

Police Pension Fund — is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan. This Fund accounts for
fiduciary resources legaily held in frust for the receipts and distributions of retirement benefits for
police employees.,

Non-Uniform Pension Fund — is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan. This Fund accounts
for fiduciary resources legally held in trust for the receipts and distributions of retirement benefits for
non-uniformed employees.

Agency Funds — are used to account for assets held in trust for the benelfit of others, with the
Township having no equity or ownership in the assets. The reporting entity includes the following
agency funds:

Subdivision Escrow Fund — is used to record receipt of escrow deposits to be used as expense
reimbursements for legat and engineering fees.

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The basic financial statements of the Township are comprised of the following:

Government-wide financial statements
Fund financial statements

Notes to financial statements
Required supplementary information

1

T

i

T

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and agency fund financial statement. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses,
assets and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions are recognized in accordance with the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-Exchange Transactions.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. '

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment
is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include {a) fees, fines and charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or
directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segmeant. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues,
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEMIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting - continued
Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on a current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a
difference measurement focus and basls of accounting than the government-wide statements, a reconciliation is
presented which briefly explains the adjustments necessary to reconcile the fund financial statements to the
governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements.

Under the modified accrual basls of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e. both
measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafier to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Township considers revenues to be available if
they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are recorded when the
refated fund liability is incurred except for unmatured interest on long-term, claims, judgments, compensated
absences and pension expenditures which are recorded as a fund liability when expected to be paid with
expendable available financial resources,

in applying the susceptible-tc-accruat concept to infergovernmental revenues, there are essentially two types of
revenues. In one fype, funds must be expended for the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be
paid to the Township, therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures incurred. In the other
type, funds are virtually unrestricted and are usualiy revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed
compliance requirement. These resources are reported as revenues as the time of receipt or earlier, if the
susceptible-to-accrual criteria are met.

Licenses and permits, fines and forfeifures, and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues when
received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment income Is
recognized as earned.

The Township's Fiduciary Funds are presented in the fund financial statfements by type {pension and agency).
Since, by definition, these assets are being heid for the benefit of a third party {other local governments, litigants,
pension participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the government, these funds
are not incorporated into the government-wide statements.

Operating revenues in the Proprietary Funds, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund, Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives
and gives up essentially equal values, Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result
from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities,

E. Assets, Liabilities and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Cash

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows for proprietary funds, cash includes all demand and savings
accounts and certificates of deposit or short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 20192

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

E. Assets, Liabilities and Deferred Outfliows/Inflows of Resources - continued

Investments

“The Board of Commissioners is authorized by statutes to invest its funds as defined in the Townshsp Code.
Authorized types of investments include the following:

A. U.S. Treasury Bills,
B. Short-term obligations of the U.S. Government or its agencies or instrumentalities.

C. Insured savings and checking accounts and certificates of deposit in bank, savings and loan
associations, and credit unions.

D. General obligation bonds of the federal government, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any
state agency, or of any Pennsylvania political subdivision.

E. Shares of mutual funds, whose investments are restricted to the above categories.
Investments of pension trust funds are pursuant to the guidelines established by the Pension Board.

 The Township categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used fo measure fair value of the
asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

Investments are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, credit, and overall market volafility. Due to the [evel
of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is reasonably possible that changes in the fair value of
investments will occur in the near<term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the
statement of financiai position.

Accounts Receivable

The Township's accounts receivables are reported at net realizable value. The Township's sewer, water and
garbage operations experience very small losses from uncollectible accounts. Sewer, water and garbage fees
constitute a lien against real property and usually can be collected in full when title transfers. Only balances after
tax sales are written off each year. Accounts receivable are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. The
allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based on professional judgment and historical trend information.

Capital Assets

Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures in the General, Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds and
assets in the government-wide financial statements to the extent the Township's capitalization threshold is met.
The Township has elected, under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, to capitalize infrastructure on a
prospective basis beginning January 1, 2004, therefore, amounts expended for infrastructure prior to January 1,
2004 are not included in the financial statements.

Capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost If actual historical cost is not available.

Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date of donation, The Township maintains a
capitalization threshold of $5,000 for all capital assets.
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 2 —~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

E. Asssis, Liabilities and Deferred Qutflows/inflows of Reéources - cohtinued

Capital Assels - continued

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated usefui lives:

Buildings and bullding improvements 25 to 40 years
Infrasiructure 25 years
Traffic signals 25 years
Vehicles and transportation equipment 5 years
Office equipment 7 years
Operating equipment 5 years
Water collection system 40 years
Sewer collection system 40 years

The cost of normal repairs and maintenance that does not add to the value of the asset of materially extend its
useful life Is not capitalized.

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s} and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources {expense/expanditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources, This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and sc will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue} until that time,

Bond Premiums, Discounis and Issuance Costs

In the government-wide financial statements, bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the
life of the bonds using the effective interest method.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during the
current period. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Debt issuance costs, except any portion related to prepaid
insurance costs, are reported as debt service expenditures in the period incurred. Prepaid insurance costs are
reported as an asset and recognized as an expense in a systematic and rational manner over the duration of the
reiated debt. In proprietary fund types, bond premiums and discounts are deferred and ameortized over the life of
the bonds using the effective interest method,

Long-Term Debt

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities or business-type activities column in the statement of net
position.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types report the face amount of debt issued as other financing

sources. Proprietary fund types recognize long-term debt and other long-term obligations as liabilities in the
statement of net position,
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

E. Assets, Liabilities and Deferred Qutflows/|\nflows_of Resources - continued

Compensated Absences

Township employess are allowed sick leave in varying amounts based on their length of employment. Employees
~ covered under the respective collective bargaining agreements accumulate sick and vacation pay as defined in
the agreement. .

F. Equity

Government-Wide Statements

The Township classifies net position into the following three components:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — this component consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, and is reduced by outstanding debt that is attributable to the acquisition, construction
and improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
that are attributable to the acquisition, consfruction or improvement of those assets or related debt
also should be included in this component of net position. Debt related to unspent proceeds Is
excluded from this component.

Restricted — this component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources related to those assets, Generally, a liability refated to restricted assets
if the assets result from a resource flows that also results in the recognition of a Fability or if the
liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets reported. This component of net position includes
constraints that are placed thereon by {a) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors
or laws and regulations of other governments or (b) law throtigh constitutional provisions or enabling
litigation.

Unrestricted — this component of net pesition is the net amount of the assels, deferred outflows of
resolrces, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of
“net investment in capital assets” or “restricted,” as noted above.

The Township's policy is to first use restricted net position prior to the use of unrestricted net position when
expenditure is incutred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net pesition are available.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements
The Township reports fund balances in the governmental funds into the following five components:

Nonspendable — this classification consists of amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not in spendable form or are legally required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — this classification consists of amounts that are restricted to specific purposes either by
(a) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws and regulations of other
governments or {(b) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The restriction is
binding unless removed with the consent of the resource provider.
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

F. Equity - continued

Governmental Fund Financial Statements - continued

Committed ~ this classification consists of amounts used for specific purposes Impesed by formal
action of the Township's highest level of decision-making authority. The commitment is binding
unless removed in the same manner imposed. Formal action must occur prior to fiscal year-send;
however, the amount may be determined subsequent to year-end.

Assigned ~ this classification consists of amounts consfrained by the Township's intent to be used for
specific purposes that are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned - this classification consists of amounts that have not been assigned io other funds and
that have not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund.
The General Fund should be the only fund that reports a positive, unassigned fund balance.

. Revenues and Expenditures

Program Revenues

All revenues are recognized when received,

in the statement of activities, revenues that are derived directly from each activity or from parties outside the
Township's taxpayers are program revenues. Amounts reported as program revenues include (a) charges to
customers or applicants for goods and services or privileges provided, (b) operating granis and contributions and
{c) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Program revenues are netted with program
expenses in the statement of activities to present the net cost of each program.

Ali other governmental revenues are reported as general. All taxes are classified as general revenue even if
restricted for a specific purpose.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenditures from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the proprietary funds are
usage charges. The Township also recognizes as operating revenues in the Sewer Fund, allocation fees intended
to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses of the proprietary funds
include the cost of the services. All revenues and expenses not mesting this definition are reported as

~ nonoperating revenues and expenses. The principal nonoperating revenues of the Township's proprietary funds
are interest income and capital contributions.

intergovernmental Revenues

intergovernmental revenues are received from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, federal agencies and local
governmental units, generally to fund specific programs, and are recognized when received.
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

H, Internal and Interfund Balances and Activities

Fund Financial Statements

Interfund activity, if any, within and among the govermnmental and proprietary fund categories, is reported as
follows In the fund financial statements:

Interfund Services — sales or purchases of goods and services between funds are reported as
revenues and expenditures. .

Interfund Reimbursements — repayments from funds responsible for certain expenditures to the
funds that initially paid for them are not reported as reimbursements, but as adjustments to
expendifures in the respective funds.

Interfund Transfers — flow of assets from one fund to another where payment is not expected is
reported as fransfers in and out,

|. Use of Estimates

The praparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

J. Recent Statements Issued by GASB

The GASRB has issued the foilowing Statements which were to become effective in the current year. In May
2020, the GASRB issued Statement No. 95, “Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative
Guidance”, which is effective immediately. These postpenements are identified below.

Statement No.83 “Certain Asset Retirement Obligations' is effective for reporting periods beginning after June
185, 2018, postponed to 2019, This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset
retirement obligations. The Township is evaluating the impact this Statement may have on the financial
statements.

Statement No.84 “Fiduciary Activities” is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018,
postponed to 2019. The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of
fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those aclivities should be
reported. The Township will no longer report the subdivision escrow separately and will be consolidated with
the general fund.
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

J.

Recent Statements Issued by GASB — continued

Statement No.88 “Certain Disclosures Refated to Debf, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements’ is
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018, postponed to 2019. The objective of this
Statement is fo improve the information that Is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related
to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. 1t also clarifies which fiabilities governments should
include when disclosing information related to debt. The Township has implemented the following Statement.
See Note 5. '

Statement No.89 "Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period" is effective
for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019, postponed to 2020, The cbjectives of this Statement
are to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing
for a reporting period and to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction
period, This Statement has no impact on the Township's financial statements.

Statement No.90 "Majority Equity Inferests — An Amendment of GASB #14 and #61" is effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2018, postponed to 2018, The objective of this Statement is to improve
the consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate
organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units, The
Township is evaluating the impact this Statement may have on the financial statements,

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTNVIENTS

The Township's available cash is invested in demand deposit accounts, money market accounts and the
Pennsylvania Locatl Government investment Trust. Pension fund assets are invested in mutual funds. The carrying
amounts of cash and investments at December 31, 2019 consist of the following:

Cash deposits $ 4,924,948
Petty cash _ 960
Investments and certificates of deposits - 7,691,917

$ 12,617,825
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - continued

Recongciliation to Statement of Net Position/Balance Sheet

Cash:

Governmental $ 1,774,952
Business-type 2,154,976
Fiduciary 895,980
4,925,908

nvesiments and cerdificates of deposit:
Governmental 1,832,723
Business-type 239,546
Fiduciary 5,619,648
7,691,917
$ 12,617,825

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a financial institution failure, the Township's deposits may not be
returned to the Township. The Pennsylvania Local Government Code and the Township's investment policy do not
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits other than the
following provisions for deposits: Pennsylvania Act 72 requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by
state or local government units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated
under state law. The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal 110% of the total amount
deposited by public agencies.

At December 31, 2019, the carrying amount of the Township's bank deposits and certificates of deposit was
$6,110,842 and the corresponding bank balances were $6,241,149, of which $250,000 was covered by Federal
Depository Insurance. The remaining $5,991,149 of deposits was exposed fo custodial risk because it was uninsured
and collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent, but not in the
Township's name.

Investments

As of December 31, 2019, the Township has the following invesiments:

investment Maturities

{in Years)
Less Than Cne Through
Fair Value One Year Five Years Level

Restricted Cash

Investmenis $ 1,162,353 $ 1,162,353 $ - 1
Investment Savings 601,856 601,896 - N/A
Pennsylvania Local

Government

Investment Trust 308,020 308,020 - N/A

Totals $ 2,072,269 $ 2072269 3 -
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - continued

Investments — continued

As of December 31, 2019, the Township's pension trust funds have the following investments:

Fair Market
Fund Value Level
Police Pension Fund:
Cash $ 578,355 NIA
Fixed Income 1,879,552 2
Equities 2,893,579 9
Common Stocks 846,517 1
Total Police Pension Fund $ 6,198,003

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill their obligations. The Township
limits the type of investments permitted as defined in the Township Code. Permitted investments are defined in Note
2. When making investments, the Township can combine monies from more than one fund under the Township’s
contro! for the purchase of a single investment and join with other political subdivisions in the purchase of a single
investment,

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The
Township does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Township will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside

party. As of December 31, 2019, $6,198,003 is held by the investment’s counterparties, not in the name of the
Township,
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NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity is as follows:

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being
depreciated:

Land and land
improvements
Construction in progress

Total capital assets
not being depreciated

Capital assets being
depreciated:
Buildings and building
improvements
Infrastructure
Traffic sighals
Vehicles and transpor-
tation equipment
Office equipment
Operating equipment

Total capitat assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets
being depreciated, net

Total governmental
activities capital
assets, net

SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

Balance Balance
January 1, Agdjustments/ December 31,
2019 Additions Deletions 2019
$ 4,281,748 $ 2,247,853 3 - $ 6,529;601
1,089,328 (1,899,328) - -
6,281,076 248,525 - 8,528,601
8,905,658 7,451 - 9,003,109
687,404 - - 687,404
244,011 - - 244,011
2,339,483 366,148 206,776 2,498,855
122,848 30,298 - 153,147
1,128,726 203,309 23,900 1,308,135
13,518,131 807,208 230,676 13,804,661
10,862,100 376,802 230,676 11,008,226 '
2,656,031 230,404 - 2,886,435
$ 8,937,107 $ 478,929 $ - $ 9416,036
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS - continued

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2019 Adjustments Additlons Delefions 2019
Business-type activities: '
Capital assets not being
depreclated: ’
Construction In progress $ 13,300 $ {13,309) $ - $ - $
Capital asseis being
depreciated;
Waler collection system 6,441,664 - - - 6,441,664
Sewer collection system 10,183,805 13,309 334,524 . - 10,541,638
Vehicles and transpor-
fation equipment 659,623 - - - 659,623
Total capital assels .
belng depreciated 17,285,082 13,308 334,524 - 17,642,925
Less accumulated
depreciation 9,891,701 - 251,273 - 10,142,874
Totat capital assets
being depraclated, net 7,403,381 13,309 83,251 - 7.499 851
Tota! business-type
activities capital
assets, net $ 7,416,700 $ - $ 83,251 3 - $ 7.499,8561

NOTE 5~ LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Governmental Activities

General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2016

On March 15, 2016 the Township issued $2,253,400 to advance refund the Township's General Obligation Bond,
Series of 2010 and provide an additional $478,630 to fund certain capital projects located within the Township.
Interest rates varies from 2.00% to 4.0% and the mafturity date is December 18, 2035. The bonds are subject to
redemption prior o maturity.

Business-Type Activities
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2016

On March 15, 2016 the Township issued $4,186,600 to advance refund the Township's General Obiigation Bond,
Series of 2010 and provide an additional $3,872,558 to fund certain capital projects located within the Township.
Interest rates varies from 2.00% to 4.0% and the maturity date is December 15, 2035. The bonds are subject to
redemption prior to maturity.
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES - continued

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2019 are as follows:

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31, Current
2019 Additions Deietions 2018 Portlon
Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:
Series of 2016, General

Obligation Bond, initial

Issue $6,440,000,

Interest rate ranging

from 2.00%-4.00% per

annur, maturing ] )

December 2035 $ 1,882,150 $ - $ 137,000 $ 1,745,150 $ 119,000
Premium 56,641 - 3,284 53,357 -
Discount (38,882) . (2,255) (36,627) -
Total bonds payable 1,888,909 - 138,029 1,761,880 119,000
Compensated absences 560,620 245,069 - 805,589 -
Net pension liability 3,828,174 1,506,872 - 5,335,046 -

Total governmental

aclivities

Long-term activities $ 6,288,603 $ 1,751,841 % 138,029 $ 7,902,515 $ 119,080

Total governmental activities interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2019 was $45,003.

Bond principal and interest payments are paid from the Debt Service Fund which Is funded by transfers in from the
General Fund.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences represent the estimated liability for employees' accrued sick leave for which employees are
entitled to be paid, The retirement of this liability is paid from the General Fund.

Net Pension {iability

The net pension fiability represents the actuarially-determined liability for employees’ projected pension bensfit
payments to be provided fo current active and inactive employees; that is aftributed to those employees’ past periods
of service, less the pension plan's fiduciary net position. The fiability is funded from the General Fund.
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES - continued

Balance Balance
January 1, - December 31, Current
2018 Additions Deletions 2019 Portion
Business-type activities:
Bonds payable;
Series of 2018, Genaral
Obilgation Bond, initial
issue $6,440,000,
interest rate ranging
from 2.00%-4.00% per
annum, maturing
December 2035 $ 3,807,850 $ - % 188,000 $  3.619,850 $ 221,000
Premium 90,491 - 5248 85,245 -
Discount (80,124) - (4,645} {75,479) -
Total business-type
activities
Leng-term activities $ 3,818,217 3 - $ 188,601 § 3,629,616 $ 221,000

Total business-type activities interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2019 was $90,718.
Aggregate maturities required on long-term debt at December 31, 2019 are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Series of 2018
General Obligation Bond
Principal Interest Total
Year Ending December 31,

2020 3 119,000 $ 43,524 $ 162,524
2021 124,250 38,764 163,014
2022 124,250 36,279 160,529
2023 127,750 33,793 161,543
2024 129,500 31,238 160,738
2025-2029 694,750 115,975 810,725
2030-2034 415,900 47,425 463,325
2035 5,750 2,493 12,243

$ 1,745,150 $ 349,491 $ 2,094,641
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 5 — LLONG-TERM LIABILITIES - continued

Business-Type Activities

Series of 2016
General Obligation Bond
Principal Interest Total
Year Ending December 31,
2020 $ 221,000 $ 80,829 $ 301,829
2021 230,750 71,089 302,739
2022 230,750 67,374 298,124
2023 237,250 62,759 300,009
2024 240,500 58,014 298,514
2025-2029 1,290,250 215,383 1,505,833
2030-2034 851.500 88,075 939,575
2035 317,850 4,632 322,482
$ 3,619,850 $ 649,055 $ 4,268,905
Total Governmeni-Wide
Series of 2016
General Obligation Bond
Principal Interest Total
Year Ending December 31,

2020 $ 340,000 $ 124,353 $ 464,353

2021 355,000 110,753 465,753

2022 355,000 103,653 458,653

2023 365,000 96,552 461,652

2024 370,000 88,252 459,252

2025-2029 ' 1,885,000 331,358 2,316,358

2030-2034 1,267,400 135,500 1,402,900

2035 327,600 7,125 334,725

$ 5,365,000 $ 998546 $ 6,363,548

Substantially all of the Township's assets are pledged as collateral for the outstanding long-term debt.
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 6 — INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES

Transfers to/from other funds for the year ended December 31, 2019 were as follows;

Transfers in Transfers Out
General Fund 3 348,351 3 804,333
Fire Protection Fund 15,500 -
Water Fund - 112,674
Sewer Fund 334,624 227,383
Refuse and Recycling Fund - 122,490
Debt Service Fund 183,032 -
Subdivision Escrow Fund - 513
Capital Projects Fund 003,542 517,556

$ 1784949 $ 1,784,949

Transfers in and transfers out from (to) other funds in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances represent fransfers between funds. Semiannual bond payments are funded by transfers from the General
Fund o the Debt Service Fund. The remaining transfers represent funding for fixed asset acquisition,

NOTE 7 — FUND BALANCE

The Township established and will maintain reservations of Fund Balance in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definifions. This Policy appiies to the Township's
General Fund and all governmentai funds. Fund balance is composed of nonspendable, restricted, committed,
assigned and unassigned amounts.

Fund halance information is used to identify the available resources fo repay long-term debt, add new
governmental programs, expand existing programs or enhance the financial position of the Township in
accordance with policies established by the Board of Commissioners.

The details of governmental fund balances as of December 31, 2019 are presented below:

General Fund
The General Fund has an unassigned fund balance of $2,628,460.

Fire Protection Fund
The restricted fund balance in the fire protection fund of $531,897 represents tax collection from Township residents
that is restricted in use to expenditures related to the Township's fire protection.

Library Fund
The restricted fund balance in the library fund of $92,508 represents tax collections from Township residents that is

resfricted in use to expenditures related to the Township's library operations.

Highway Fund
The restricted fund balance in the liquid fusls highway aid fund of $720,664 represents state gas taxes received from

the state of Pennsylvania that is restricted to use in highway and street construction and repairs.

Capital Projects Fund
The restricted fund balance in the capital projects fund of $28,985 represents restricted funds for the purchase
capital outlays including the acquisition or construction of capita! facilities and other capital assets
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS
GENERAL INFORMATION — POLICE PENSION

Plan Description

The Salisbury Township Police Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan controlied by the
provisions of Codified Ordinances adopted pursuant to Act 600. The Plan is governed by the Salisbury Township
which may amend plan provisions, and which is responsible for the management of plan assets. Salfisbury Township
has delegated the authority to manage certain plan assets to PNC Institutional Asset Management.

Salisbury Township filed an actuarial valuation report Form 201C with Public Employee Retirement Commission. The
report dated January 1, 2019, was the most recently certified by the municipality's chief administrative officer. This
report indicated the mun:ctpa!tty mamtams a pension plan to provide pension or retirement benefits for Uniform
employees, _

Employees Covered by the Plan

As of January 1, 2019, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

2019
Active employees 20
Retirees and heneficiaries currently receiving benefits 9
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them 0
TOTAL | 29

Benefit Provisions

The following Is a summary of the Plan’s benefit provisions:
Eligibility
All fuli-time policemen working at least forty (40) hours per week at a definite salary.
Retirement Dates

Normal Retirement Date — a participant may retire upon the attainment of age fifty (50) and completion of twenty-
five (25) years of service.

Disability Retirement Date — the existence of a permanent and total disability from performing police work
provided the police officer was honorably discharged as a result of the disability.

Retirement Beneflis
Normal Retirement Benefit - fifty percent (50%) of the participant's average monthly salary during the last thirty-
six (36) months of employment. Effective 1/02/07, a service increment equal to one hundred doliars ($100) per

month for each full year of service in excess of twenty -five (25) years shali be added to the normal retirement
benefit. The maximum service increment shall be five hundred dollars ($500) per month.
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DECEMBER 31, 2019
NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS — continued
GENERAL INFORMATION - POLICE PENSION - continued

Benefit Provisions — continued

Retirement Benefit — continued

Disability Retirement Benefit — in the event of a permanent service-related injury, the benefit shall be equal to
75% of the average monthly salary during the last thirty-six (36) months of employment or if greater, 50% of the
participant's monthly salary at the time of disability. The benefit would be payable as if the date of disability had
been hisfher normal retirement date. This benefit is reduced by any benefits or payments received by such
participant under the Social Security Administration for the same injury.

Accrued Benefit

The Normal Retirement Benefit multiplied by the fraction of years of services to date over total expected years of
service to retirement.

Vested Benefits

Non-Vested Benefit — any participant, who for any reason, shall be ineligibie to receive a pension after having
contributed, shall be entitled to a refund of hisfher contributions plus interest at the rate of five percent (5%) per
annum upon discontinuance of his employment,

Vested Benefit — upon discontinuance of employment after completing twelve {12) vears of service where such
termination is for reasons other than disability, death or retirement, the member receives fuli vesting of the
Accrued Benefil. ' :

Death Benefits

Pre-Retirement - the widow of a participant who was vested or was still employed after having met the age and
service requirements shall receive 50% of the pension the participant would have received had hefshe been
retired at the time of his/her death.

Post-Retirement Survivors Benefit — the widow of a participant who has attained eligibility for retirement, or a
participant who retired on pension, shall receive during the spouse’s lifetime, fifty percent (50%) of the pension
the participant was receiving or would have been receiving had he been retired at the time of his death.

If no such widow survives, or if the spouse survives and subsequently dies or remarries, then the children under
the age of eighteen (18) or are attending college and have not yet attainted age twenty three (23), shall be
entitled to the same benefit described above,

Monthly Salary

The amount of monthly compensation paid to a participant by the Township each and every month.

Employee Confributions
Each participant shall contribute to the fund not less than five percent (5%) or more than eight percent (8%). The

Township may, on an annual basis, reduce or eliminate participant contributions to the fund. These contributions
will be made in accordance with IRC Section 414(h)(2). .
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NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS — continued

GENERAL INFORMATION -~ POLICE PENSION — continued

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Actuarial Methods

Liabilities — all plan benefits are valued using the entry age normal cost valuation method,

Actuarial Assumptions

a. Investment Return — 7% per annum, net of investment expenses.
b, Salary Increases — 5% compounded annually.
Demographic Assumptions
a, Mortality —
Pre-Retirement — None
Post-Rétirement - the Blue Collar RP-2000 Mortality Table projected to 2017 using Scale AA
b. Termination — none assumed
c. Disability — none assumed
d. Retirement Age — normal retirement age, or age on valuation date if greater.
e, Marital Status — 80% of active members are assumed to be married. Female spouée Is assumed to be 3
years younger than male spouse,
f. Form of Annuity — 50% jolnt and survivor,
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NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS - continued
GENERAL INFORMATION — POLICE PENSION - continued
Contrbufions

Act 205 requires that annual contributions to the Plan he based upon the Plan’s Minimum Municipal Obligation
{MMO), which is based on the Ptan's biennial actuarial vaiuation. in accordance with the Plan’s governing document,
employees are required to contribute 3.04% of compensation to the Plan. The Plan may also be eligible to receive an
allocation of state aid from the General Municipal Pension System State Aid Program which must be used for pension
funding. Any funding requirements established by the MMO in excess of employee contributions and state aid must
be paid by the municipality In accordance with Act 205,

Investment expenses, including investment manager and custodial services, are funded through investment earnings.
Administrative expenses, including actuarial and consultant services, are funded through investment earnings and/for
contributions.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — POLICE PENSION FUND

Basis of Accounting

The Plan's policy is to prepare its financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions
are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions to the Plan are recognized
when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

Valuation of Investments

The pension Plan's assets are valued at fair market value,
INVESTMENTS — POLICE PENSION FUND

Investment Policy

The pension Plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the
Pension Board. The investment policy of the Plan is to maximize the total rate of return over the long term, subject to
preservation of capital, by diversifying the allocation of capital among various investments in domestic equity
securities, international equity. securities, domestic fixed income instruments and other asset classes as may be
deemed prudent.

The Plan's investment policy establishes thaf the portfolio may be invested in the following asset classes with the
following target asset allocation;

Target
Asset Class Ailocation
Domestic Equity Large Cap ' 27%
Domestic Equity Mid Cap 20%
Domestic Equity Small Cap 8%
International Equity 5%
Fixed Income 31%
Cash 9%
Total 100%
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NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS — continued
INVESTMENTS — POLICE PENSION - continued
Rate of Return
For the year ended December 31, 2018, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan investments, net
of pension plan investment expense, was 16.08 percent. The money welghted rate of return expresses investment
performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.
DEFERRED RETIREMENT OPTION PROGRAM — POLICE PENSION FUND
The Plan does not provide a Deferred Retirement Option Program.

PENSION LIABILITY — POLICE PENSION FUND

Net Pension Liabilitv

The corhponents of the net pension liability of the rhunicipaﬁty as of December 31, 2019 were as follows:

Total Pension Liability (TPL) $ 7,326,859
Plan Fiduciary Net Position $ 6,188,003
Net Pension Liability {NPL) $ 1,128,856
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the

Total Pension Liabiiy ' 84.6%

Actuarial Assumptions

An actuarial vajuation of the fotal pension liability is performed biennially. The fotal pension liability was determined as
part of an actuarial valuation at January 1, 2018. Update procedures were used to roll forward to the Plan’s fiscal year
ending December 31, 2019. This report was based upon the Plan's actuarial assumptions, asset valuation method
and cost method.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation of 2.25%) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of December 31, 2019 are summarized in the following
table:

Target
Asset Class Allocation
Domestic Equity Large Cap 6.09%
Domestic Equity Mid Cap 7.27%
Domestic Equity Small Cap 7.27%
International Equity 8.24%
Fixed Income 3.17%
Cash 0.82%
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NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS — continued
PENSION LIABILITY — POLICE PENSION — continued
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7%. The projection of cash flows used fo determine
the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that
imunicipal contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates
and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the Fund's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Net Pension Liability Sensitivity

The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension liability t6 changes in the discount rate. The table below
presents the net position liability would be if it were calculated using a different rate that is 1 percentage point lower
(68%) or 1 percentage point higher (8%) than the current rate;

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.00% 7.00% 8.00%
Net Pension Liability $ 2,083,697 $ 1,128,956 $ 341,615

Changes in Net Pension Liabllity

The following table shows the changes in net pension liability recognized over the measurement period.

Increase/(Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liabifity Net Pension Liability
)] {b) (a) ~ (b)
Balances at 12/31/2018 $ 7,239,818 $ 5,189,481 $ 2,080,335
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 307,346 - 307,346
Interest 487,760 - 487,780
Changes in Benefit Terms - - -
Differences Between Expected and Actual
txperience (450,360) - (450,369)
Changes of Assumptions - - -
Contributions — Employer - 200,184 (200,184)
Contributions — State Aid - 184,338 (184,338)
Contributions - Member - 40,181 {40,181)
Net investment income - 847,447 (847,447)
Benefit Payments (257 ,603) (267,603) -
Administrative Expense - (6,025) 8,025
Other Changes - - -
Balances at 12/31/2019 $ 7,326,959 3 6,198,003 $ 1,128,956
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NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS — continued
PENSION LIABILITY — POLICE PENSION - continued

Pension Expense for Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018

Service Cost $ 307,346
Interest in Total Pension Liability 487,760
Changes in Benefit Terms -
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience (68,399)
Changes of Assumptions 2,282
Employee Contributions (40,181)
Projected Earnings on Pension Plan Investments (362,172)
Differences Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Investments 67,785
Administrative Expense : 6,025
Other Changes in Fiductary Net Position -
Total Pension Expense $ 400,446

Deferred Quiflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the municipality recognized a pension expense of $400,446. At
December 31, 2019, the municipality reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources.

Deferred Deferred
Outfiows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience $ - $ (506,923)
Changes in Assumptions 12,758 -
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings
on Pension Plan investments - (22,994)
Total 3 12,758 $ (529,917

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in the pension expense as follows;

Year Ended December 31:
2020 $ (54,474)

2021 {54,252)
2022 {15,564)
2023 (163,172)
2024 (66,117)
Thereafter {163,580}

Total $ {617,159)

43




SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS - continued

NON-UNIFORM PENSION

Plan Description

Salisbury Township's pension plan is a single-employer cash balance pension plan controlied by the provisions of
Ordinance No. 102 adopted pursuant to Act 15 of 1974, The plan participates in the Pennsylvania Municipal
Retirement System (PMRS), which is an agent multi-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a
common investment and administrative agent for participating municipal pension plans. PMRS issues a separate
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)., The CAFR is available on the PMRS website and can be
obtained by contacting the PMRS accounting office,

Benefit Provisions - The plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and their
beneficiaries. Cost-of-living allowances are provided at the discretion of the plan.

The following table coniains the number of active participants, deferred vested participants, and participanis
currently receiving a benefit from the Plan based upon the most recent actuarial valuation date of January 1,
2019:

Active members 38
Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits 32
Inactive employees entitled to benefits but

not yet receiving them 3
Total 73

Summary of Sianificant Accounting Pelicies

Basls of Accounting - The plan's financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan
member contributions are recognized in the period in which the confributions are due, Employer contributions to
the plan are recognized when due, in accordance with Act 205, as amended. Benefits and refunds are
recegnized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments - Investments are reported at fair value, The plan's assets with PMRS are
pooled for investment purposes and, therefore, do not represent specific identifiable investment securities.
Disclosures required by Statement No. 3 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board for aggregate PMRS
investments are included in PMRS's separately issued CAFR.
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NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS - continued

NON-UNIFORM PENSION ~ continued

L.ong-Term Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets

The PMRS System's long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block methed in which best-estimates of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expenses and inflation: are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the Long-Term Expected Rate of Return, by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic
real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of
December 31, 2018 are summarized in the table below labeled "System Nominal and Real Rates of Return by
Asset Class.” There are three steps to the method:

1) Expected future real rates of return are based primarily on the 20 year nominal rates of return as reflected by
applicable return indexes and may be adjusted for specific asset classes if, in the Board's opinion, any such
asset classes are expected in the future fo significantly vary from its 20 year returns.

2) The nominal rates of return by asset class are adjusted by the System’s investment expenses and an
expected future annual inflation rate of 2.2% to produce the long-term expected real rates of return.

3) The long-term expected real rates of return are further adjusted by weighting each asset class using the
PMRS portfolio target asset allocations.

The resuits from steps 1 through 3 are shown in the tabie labeled "System Nominal and Real Rates of Return by
Asset Class.”

System Nominal and Real Rates of Return by Asset Class

Long-Term

Target Nominal Expected

Asset Rate of Real Rate of
Asset Class ‘ Allocation Retumn Return
Domestic Equities (large capitaiized firms) 25% 7.3% 4.6%
Domestic Equities (small capitalized firms) 15% 10.0% 7.3%
International Equities (international developed

markets) 15% 6.2% 3.5%

international Equities (emerging markets) 10% 10.6% 8.3%
Real Estate 20% 8.5% 5.4%
Fixed Income 15% 3.3% 1.1%
Total Partfolio 100% 7.5% 4.8%
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NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS - continued

NON-UNIFORM PENSION - continued

Based on the three part analysis, the Board established the System's Long-Term Expected Rate of Return at
7.0%.

In addition to determining the System’s Long-Term Expected Rate of Return, the PMRS Board, under the laws of
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Act 15 of 1974), is obligated to develop and apply the Regular Interest Rate
to each of the individual participating municipalities’ actuarial asset accounts held by PMRS. The rationale for the
difference between the System's Long-Term Expected Rate of Return and the individual participating
municipalities’ Regtdar Interest Rate is described in the following section "Discount Rate.” As of December 31,
2018, this is equal to 5.25%.

The Board has determined the minimum acceptable confidence level for achieving the Regular Interest Rate to
be 70%. The table below labeled “Confidence Levels for System Nominal and Real Rates of Return” identifies
simulated portfolio returns at various confidence levels based on the most recent asset allocation study
conducted by the Boards' investment consultant, Dahab Associates.

Confidence Levels for System Nominal and Real Rates of Return

Long-Term
Target Nominal Expected
Asset Rate of Real Rate of
Allocation Return Return
85% 2.8% 0.1%
90% 3.9% 1.2%
85% 4.6% 1.9%
80% 51% 2.4%
75% 5.5% 2.8%
70% 5.9% 3.2%
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NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS - continued
NON-UNIFORNM PENSION - continued
Discount Rate

While it is often common practice to establish an actuarial Discount Rate that is equal to the Long-Term
Expected Rate of Return, PMRS is required by law (Act 15 of 1974) to establish a Discount Rate equal to the
Regular interest Rate {Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate). The PMRS Board estabilishes the Regular Interest
Rate/Discount Rate on the basis of expected stable and consistent earnings on investments fo be applied to the
accounts of the individual participating municipalities and includes the accounts of plan participants,
municipalities, and plan retirees each year. As a starting point, the Board considers the following five quantitative
factors in establishing the Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate:

1) Retires Plan liability as a percentage of total Plan liability,

2) Active Plan participant liability as a percentage of total Plan liability,

3) Smoothed Pension Benefit Guarantee Corporation (PBGC) annuity rates as a proxy for annuity
purchase rates,

4} PMRS System Long-Term Expected Rate of Return, and

B) PMRS investment expenses

The formula using these factors is as follows:

Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate = (Retiree Liability Percentage X Smoothed PBGC Annuity Rates) + (Active
Employee Liability Percentage X System Long-Term Expected Rate of Return) — (Investment Expenses as a
percentage of assets)

The Board then adjusts the Reguiar interest Rate/Discount Rate derived from the above formula by a variety of
qualitative factors such as the desire to minimize Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate volatility, varying levels of
asset allocation and liquidity, trending of PBGC annuity rates/ total PMRS actuarial and market value funding
ratios, feedback from existing PMRS municipalities, and recommendations from the System's investment and
actuarial consultants, The Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate adopted by the Board and used to measure the
individual participating municipalities' total pension liahility was 5.25% as of December 31, 2018.

The Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate will likely be less than the System Long-Term Expected Rate of Return.
Should the System experience a prolonged period of investment returns in excess of the Regular Interest
Rate/Discount Rate, the Board is authorized fo allocate any applicable portion of any such excess in accordance
with Board policies in the form of Excess inferest as provided for in the law.

The projection of cash flows for each underlying municipal plan, used to determine if any adjustment to the
Regular Interest Rate/Discount Rate was required (“depletion testing”), used the following assumptions: 1)
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate, 2) participating plan sponsor contributions will
be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate,
and 3) the System's Long-Term Expected Rate of Return will be used in the depletion testing of projected cash
flows. Based on those assumptions, the PMRS pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be
avallable to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS — continued
NON-UNIFORM PENSION - continued

Net Pension Liability

The net pension liability represents the liability for employees’ for projected pension payments to be provided to
current active and inactive employees that is attributed to those employees’ past periods of service less the
amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position.

The Pennsyivania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS) is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan. The Measurement Date for the Net Pension Liability (NPL) is December 31, 2018, which is no earlier than
the end of the employer's prior fiscal year as allowed by Paragraph 20 of GASB 68, The table below provides a
summary of the key resuits during this measurement period:

‘ 12/31/2018 121312017
Net Pension Liability $ 4,206,090 $ 1,777,839
Deferred Inflows 248 944,150
Deferred Outflows {1,360,230) (556,933)
Net Impact on Statement of Net Position $ 2,846,108 $ 2,165,056
Total Payroll $ 2.584,504 $ 2,364,361
Total Pension Expense ($ Amount) $ 1,188,480 $ 690,791
Total Pension Expense (% of Payroll) 45,988% 29.22%

Any employer confributions made between the Measurement Date and the Reporting Date would be reported as
deferred outflows to offset the cash outflow reported. The Total Pension Liability (TPL) for the Employer is
measured as of December 31, 2018 based on the actuarial valuation of the same date. The bseginning of year
TPL as of December 31, 2017 is based on the actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2017 and then projected to
December 31, 2017. This TPL reflects any plan changes identified in the prior year's report. It is our
understanding that there were no other significant changes during this projection period, [n alternating years, the
beginning of year TPL will be based on the actuaria! valuation on the same date, and the end of year TPL will be
based on the actuarial valuation one year prior and then projected to the measurement date,

A breakdown of the components of the net pension expense is shown later in the report.

Deterimination of Discount Rate

The determination of the discount rate is based on the Long-Term Expected Rate of Return for individual
participating municipalities, which PMRS develops and Is also referred to as the Regular Interest Rate. For more
information, please refer to the Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets for the December 31, 2018
measurement.
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Determination of Discount Rate - continued

Based on the assumptions outlined in this publication, the plan fiduciary net position was determined to be
available to make al projected benefit payments of current plan members based on the assumption that ali MMO
payments as determined and required under Act 205 will be paid accordingly. Therefore, the municipal long-term
expected rate of return for municipal and member accounts was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the Total Pensicn Liabiity.

Changes in Net Pension Liability
The table below shows the changes in the Total Pension Liability, the Plan Fiduciary Net Posmon (i.e., fair value
of Plan assets), and the Net Pension Liability as of the Measurement Date:

Increase/(Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Pension Liability
(a) {b) (a) — (b}
Balances at 12/31/2017 $ 16,504,759 $ 14,726,920 $ 1,777,839
Changes for the year.
Service cost 410,952 - 410,852
Interest 867,205 - 867,205
Changes of benefits - - -
Changes of assumptions* - - -
Differences between expected and acfual
experience 1,168,669 - 1,168,669
Contributions — empioyer - 505,048 {505,948)
Contributions — PMRS assessment - 1,480 {1,480)
Contributions — member - - -
PMRS investment income - 717,729 (717.729)
Market value investment income* . - (1,173,093) 1,173,093
Transfers ' _ - - -
Benefit payments (805,344) (805,344) -
PMRS administrative expense - (1,460) 1,460
Additional administrative expense - (32,029) 32,029
Balances at 12/31/2018 $ 18,146,241 $ 13,940,151 $ 4208,0920

*Reflects the net Investment income/ (loss) of ($1,383,946) and the income/ (loss} due to the difference between expected and actual asset
values of $210,853, which includes the impact from allocation of assets in support of the underlying retiree liabilities.
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NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS - continued
NON-UNIFORNM PENSION - continued

Changes in Net Pension Liability - continued

This report does not reflect changes in benefits or assumptions after January 1, 2018 because the beginning
and end of year TPL are based upon different actuarial valuation dates, there is a difference between expected
and actual experience reported this year, per GASB 68 paragraph 22. The beginning of year TPL is based upon
the January 1, 2018 actuarial valuation, with liabilities measured at December 31, 2017. The end of year TPL is
based upon the same actuarial valuation with liabilities rolled forward to December 31, 2018. Expect as noted
below, the TPL as of December 31, 2018 was based upon the data, actuarial methods and assumptions, and
plan provisions,

According to Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 67 and 68, PMRS is required
to allocate/distribute all funds to the respective partlclpatlng employers for fmanuai reporting purposes, fo
determine the respective employer “plan fiduciary net position.”

PMRS has determined that net investment income or loss and administrative expenses will be allocated to the
employer/municipality accounts pro-rata based on their beginning Fiduciary Net Position balance adjusted for
cash flows throughout the year. The “Additional adminisirative expenses” are the expenses in excess of the
"PMRS administrative expense” (Le. $20 per participant expense paid by each plan). The "PMRS investment
income” is based upon the regular and excess interest used to credit accounts manually, The "Market value
investment income” refiects the investment incomefloss during the year net of PMRS invesiment income and
the income/loss due to the difference between expected and actual asset values, including the impact from
allocation of assets in support of the underlying retiree liabilities.

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability to Changes in Discount Rate

Changes in the discount rate affect the measurement of the TPL. Lower discount rates produce a higher TPL
and higher discount rates produce a lower TPL. Because the discount rate does not affect the measurement of
assets, the percentage change in the NPL can be very significant for a relatively small change in the discount
rate. The table below shows the sensitivity of the NPL to the discount rate with two additional measures, pius
and minus one percent from the rate used for disclosure.

1% Decrease

Discount Rate

1% Increase

4.25% 5.25% 6.25%
Total Pension Liability $ 20,216,301 $ 18,146,241 $ 16,373,741
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 13,940,151 13,940,151 13,940,151
Net Pension Liability $ 6,276,150 $ 4,206,090 $ 2,433,590
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as
a Percentage of the Total
Pension Liability 68.96% 76.82% 85.14%
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NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS - continued
NON-UNIFORM PENSION - continued

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

The impact of investment gains or losses for expensing is recognized over a period of five years. The impact of
experience gains or losses and assumption changes on the TPL are recognized in the coliective pension
expense over the average expected remaining service life of all active and inactive members of the Plan, as
provided below.

There were experience gains or losses between the beginning of year and end of year liabilities because the
liabilities are based upon two different actuariai valuation dates. Also, assumption changes as of the
Measurement Date have been refiected. '

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience $ 1,063,429 $ {(248)
Changes in Assumptions 145,764 -
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings
on Pension Plan Investments 161,037 -
Total $ 1,360,230 $ {248)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

Year Ended December 31:
2018 $ 556,209

2018 170,112
2020 165,311
2021 468,350
2022 -
Thereafter -
Total $ 1,359,982

The recognition period for experience and assumptions change gains/losses is 5.00 years.
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NOTE 8 ~ PENSION PLANS — continued

NON-UNIFORM PENSION - continued

Calculation of Collective Pension Expense
The annual pension expense recognized can be calculated two difference ways. First, it is the change in the

amounts reported on for the Employer’s Statement of Net Position that relate to the plan and are not attributable
to employer contributions. That is, it is the change in NPL plus the changes in deferred outflows and deferred
inflows plus employer contributions.

Alternatively, annual pension expense can be calculated by its individual components, While GASB does not

require or suggest the erganization of the individual components shown in the table below, we believe it helps to
understand the level and volatility of pension expense.

Measurement Year Ending

12/31/2018 12/31/2017
Change in Net Pension Liability $ 2,428,251 $ (1,438,284)
Change in Deferred Outflows (803,297) 698,008
Change in Deferred inflows {943,902) 943,410
Employer Contributions 507,428 487,659
Pension Expense $ 1,188,480 $ 660,791
Pension Expense as % of Payroil 45.98% 28.22%
Operating Expenses:;
Service cost $ 410,952 $ 375,047
Employee contributions - -
PMRS administrative expense 1,460 1,420
Additional administrative expense 32,029 31,692
Total 444,441 408,959
Financing Expenses:
Interest cost 867,205 842 578
Expected return on assets (717,729) (686,956)
Total 149,476 155,622
Changes:
Benefit changes - -
Recognition of assumption changes 145,765 145,765
Recognition of Hability gains and losses 380,308 146,662
Recognition of investment gains and losses 68,400 (166,217)
Total 504 563 126,210
Pension Expense $ 1,188,480 3 690,791
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NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing these financial statements, management of Salisbury Township has evaiuated events and transactions
subsequent to December 31, 2019 through December 1, 2020, the date these financial statements were available to
be issued. Based on the definitions and reguirements of the Subsequent Events Topics of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification, management of Salisbury Township is aware of the following subsequent event,

Onr March 13, 2020, the President of the United States declared a national emergency conceming the novel
coronavirus disease (COVID-19) outbreak,

The full Impact of the coronavirus continues to evolve as of the date of this report. As such, it is uncertain as to the
full magnitude that the pandsmic will have on the Township's financial condition and future results of operations.
Management s actively monitoring the situation and ifs impact on the Township's financial condition. Given the daily
evolution of the coronavirus and the global responses o curb its spread, the Township is currently not able to
estimate the effects of the coronavirus on its results of operations and financiat condition.
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
. LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Variance with

Actual Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts . Budget Positive
Original Final Basis {Negative)
Revenues
Taxes $ 6,425345 $ 6425345 $ 6,045,890 $ {379,455)
Licenses and permits 264,300 264,300 248,890 {15,410}
Fines and forfeits 98,600 98,600 61,080 (37,520)
Interest, rents and royalties 102,447 102 447 127,631 25,184
Intergovernmental 137,800 137,800 660,859 523,059
Charges for services 391,950 391,950 574,948 182,098
Miscellaneous 89,700 89,700 97,481 . 7,781
Total Revenues 7,510,142 7,510,142 7,816,779 306,637
Other Financing Sources
Proceeds of general fixed asset disposition 1,000 1,000 - (1,000}
Transfers in 333,300 333,300 348,351 15,051
Refunds of prior year expenditures 48,300 48,300 65,654 17,354
Total Other Financing Sources 382,600 382 600 414,005 31,405
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources - 7,892.742 7,892,742 8,230,784 338,042
Expenditures
General government 861,470 861,470 1,025,357 (163,887}
Public safety 2,770,592 2,770,692 2,832,555 ‘ {61,963)
Public works - highways and streets 1,622,390 1,622,390 1,616,438 5,952
Culture and recreation 67,260 87,260 80,829 {13,569)
Community development 62,500 62,800 83,635 {735)
Payroil taxes 186,754 186,754 181,028 5,726
Pension 869,342 869,342 874,293 (4,951)
insurance and other benefits 1,316,880 1,316,680 1,339,587 {22,907)
Miscellaneous 300 300 56 244
Refund of prior year revenues - - 1,618 {1,618}
Transiers out 263,750 263,750 804,333 (540,583)
Total Expenditures 8,021,438 8,021,438 8,819,729 {798,291)
Excess (Deficit} of revenues and other
financing sources over (under) expenditures $ (128,698) § {128,6986) (588,945) § 460,249
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 3,218,405
Fund Balances at End of Year - $ 2,629,460
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 1 - BUDGETARY COMPLIANCE

The annual budget is prepared and adopted by the Township's Commissioners, Subsequent amandments are also
prepared and adopted by the Township's Commissioners. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year end.
Encumbrances are notf included as expenditures. During the current year, the budget was amended in a legally
permissible manner.

The budget has been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America for the General Fund. The Township follows procedures outlined below in establishing the budget refiected in
the financial statements:

1. At least 30 days prior to budget adoption, the Township prepares a proposed budget for the ensuing
year.

2. Notification of the proposed budget and hearings on it are held by the Township prior to adoption.

3. Prior to December 31%, the budget is legally enacted by the Township and the tax levy ordinance is
adopted.

4. The Township, during the budget year, is authorized to modify the budget through either budget

_transfers or supplemental appropriations.
5. The budget lapses at the end of the year.

The budget has been adopted on the activity basis; expenditures at this level in excess amounts budgeted are a
violation of the Pennsylvania First Class Township Code, Comparison of actual results of operations to the budget of
the General Fund as adopted by the Township's Commissioners is included in the required supplementat information
of the hasic financial statements.

For the year ended December 31, 2019, expenditures exceeded appropriations at the legal level of control in the
General Fund as follows:

Expenditures
Exceeding

Object Category Appropriations
General government $ 163,887
Public safety $ 61,963
Cuiture and recreation $ 13,569
Community development $ 735
Pension $ 4,951
Insurance and other benefils $ 22,907
Refund of prior year revenues $ 1,618
Transfers out 3 540,583

NOTE B — PENSION iNFORMATION

Changes in Benefit Terms

None.
Changes in Assumptions
None,
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SALISBURY TOWNSHIP
LEHIGH COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Fire Capital Total Other
Profection Library Projects Debt Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

Revenues

Taxes $ 269,855 $ 78,761 $ - - $ 348,616

Interest, rents and royalties 7,258 2,039 - - 9,257

Intergovernmeanitaf - - 312,718 - 312,718
Total Revenues 277,113 80,800 312,718 - 670,631
Other Financing Sources

Proceeds of generai fixed asset disposition - - 84,897 - 84,897

Transfers in 15,500 - 903,542 183,032 1,102,074

Refunds of prior year expenditures 23,878 - 23,878
Total Revenues and Other

Financing Sources 292,613 80,800 1,325,035 183,032 1,881,480
Expenditures

General government - - 38,244 - 38,244

Public safety 171,259 - 294,298 - 465,557

Public works - highways and sfreets - - 196,780 - 198,780

Culiure and recreation “ 81,559 248,525 - 330,084

Debt service - principal - - - 137,000 137,000

Debt service - inlerest - - - 46,032 46,032

Miscellaneous 345 101 847 - 1,093

Transfers out ' - - 517,556 - 517,556
Total Expenditures 171,604 81,660 1,296,050 183,032 1,732,346
Excess (Deficit} of revenues and

other financing sources over {under} expenditures 124,000 (8860} 28,985 - 145,134
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 410,888 93,359 - - 504,257
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 531,897 $ §2,609 $ 28,985 - $ 653,391

The notes to financial stalements are an infegral part of these financial statements.
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